Welcome to Mendon: Gateway to the Green Mountains

History

The town of Mendon was chartered as Medway by
Governor Thomas Chittenden in 1781 in response to a
petition presented by 35 freemen. The name was changed
to Parkerstown in 1804 to recognize Jonathan Parker, a
large landowner in the town, and then in 1827 the name
was changed permanently to Mendon. The reason for the
name change Is lost to history but there iIs a Mendon,
Massachusetts, and a
number of early settlers
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England. The town was
organized in 1800 at its
first town meeting.
Farming and logging were the primary activities and sawmills, a tannery, a
pillbox factory and a worsted textile mill once flourished on Mendon Brook. Eight
ohe-room school houses served the town’s children, and old stone walls, cellar
holes, overgrown apple orchards and family cemeteries still dot the landscape.
Mendon was located on
the main route from Rutland to
Woodstock and points east. In
1807 plans were presented to lay
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eeidents whoseredn W Turnpike that followed the path of
the present Route 4 and the current Old Turnpike Road over the
Green Mountains, then up Route 100 to Stockbridge. Several
years later an extension to Woodstock was built starting at the Old
Turnpike Road.

Mendon Village Center, circa 1920

At one time the Mendon village center had a stagecoach stop, a tavern, livery stables and later a gas station,

inn, and library. The village center was severely impacted by the widening of Route 4 in the 1950’s with the
removal of many homes and commercial establishments.

Recreation

Mendon Is blessed with the best hiking opportunities
In mid-Vermont. The Appalachian Trail from Maine to
Georgia and the Long Trail which traverses the Green
Mountain spine from Massachusetts to Canada pass
through town. The Bucklin Trail starts at Brewer's Corner
on the Wheelerville Road and leads 3.5 miles to Killington
Peak, the second highest peak in Vermont. The Canty
Trail on Old Turnpike Road follows a series of tumbling
cascades to the summit of Blue Ridge. From the Notch
Road, one can hike the three miles of trails on Bald
Mountain in Aitken State Forest and also access the
former CCC camp and Girl Scout Camp at Tamarack
Notch with its three-quarter mile loop trail on flat ground.
Adventuresome hikers can follow old logging roads and then bushwhack to the summit of
Mendon Peak, which at 3840 feet is the highest peak in Vermont without developed
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General Edward Hastings Ripley

The scion of a well-established local

to enlist in the Ninth Vermont Infantry at

the start of the Civil War. He saw action in
numerous battles including Harper's Ferry,
Chaffin’s Farm and Fair Oaks, and rose to the
rank of Brigadier General.

was abandoning its capital in Richmond,

VA, Ripley was selected to lead the first
Union troops into the war-torn city. He was
immediately confronted with a conflagration
as the retreating Confederates had set fire to
dozens of buildings. Ripley is credited with
having organized his troops to extinguish

the inferno and thus save many of that city’s
historic buildings. He also learned of a plot to
assassinate President Lincoln and personally warned Lincoln when the President
visited Richmond just days before his death.

Following the war, Ripley returned to Vermont and settled in Mendon, building
a large estate replete with stables, fishing ponds and the town’s most prominent
residence. His faithful Civil War horse, Old John, is buried beneath a large hillside
poulder across the road, near the Vermont state historical marker.

Ripley’s business Interests In Vermont and throughout the East included the
marble Industry, raillroads and banks. He also served as Mendon's representative
to the Vermont State legislature and in 1884 donated the land to Mendon to
puild its town hall. Ripley remained active in civic and town affairs until his death
in 1915. His estate was largely destroyed when U.S. Route 4 was widened in the
1950s, although the family sugar shack still stands across the road.

For Further Information on Mendon go to mendonvt.org

family, Edward Ripley left his university studies

In April of 1865, as the Confederate army

Mendon’s Old Town Hall

As the population of Mendon slowly
iIncreased in the 19th century, it became
apparent that the annual March town
meeting needed a permanent home.
There being no public property on which
a municipal building could be built,
General Edward Ripley came to the
rescue.

Ripley had moved to Mendon after
his distinguished career in the Civil War,
puilding his substantial estate across current U.S. Route 4 from where you now
stand. He built houses for his two daughters on this side of the road and donated
the remaining land to the Town of Mendon for its town hall.

In 1888, the Mendon Town Hall was constructed for a total cost of $718.95. It
was built on a marble foundation with milled wood framing, clapboard siding and
nine-over-nine windows, and boasted
a slate roof. In 1889, the Selectboard
authorized $21.75 for the purchase
of furniture. The town hall quickly
became the center of town activities.
In adadition to the annual town
meeting, Selectboard meetings and
all manner of town functions were
held there.

By the 1950s, the building could
no longer hold Mendon's burgeoning
population. Town meetings were
moved to the Mendon Grange Hall and the Town Hall was converted into the town
garage, serving that purpose until 1970. The building slowly deteriorated and

after exhaustive study and multiple attempts to salvage this piece of history, the
building was demolished in 2019.

Counting Votes on Town Meeting Day at Me d Town Ha II a 1930
Pictured are Dr. John Thomas, Andrew Currier, Mike Der H I ey Ranger, Robert Cur
Harley Faye and Richard Sharpe.




Geology and Topography

Mendon is a rural community in the heart
of Vermont’'s Green Mountains, with large
portions of the town comprised of steep and

" highterrain. Within its borders stands Killington
7 /7 Peak (4229 feet), the second highest summit in
i ==~~~ Vermont. Little Killington Peak (3939 feet) and our
= -  namesake mountain Mendon Peak (3840 feet) also
/. */ grace our skyline. On the western side of town lie Blue
 Ridge (3298 feet), East Mountain (2390 feet) and Bald
Mountain (2087 feet.) These high elevations and steep
o (O ~ slopes have thin soil over Cambrian and pre-Cambrian
Nl . gneiss and schist.

— e . The Mendon Moraine, left over
ot <8 - from the last glacial epoch
R M 4 W7 - 11,000 years ago, runs along the

~ western flank of East Mountain.

The portion of town served by Wheelerville Road consists of glacial eskers and
outwash till and Is dotted with glacial erratics. The area allowed some agriculture
In the 19th century and currently supports a timber industry and recreation.

Over 90% of Mendon is forested. Two-thirds of the land in town is protected by
the Green Mountain National Forest, three Vermont State Forests and the Rutland
City Forest, which serves as the water supply for the City of Rutland via Mendon
Brook. These forests provide habitat for bear, moose, deer, marten, porcupines
and numerous other mammals as well as grouse,
woodcock and an uncountable number of
non-game birds. Vernal pools and beaver ponds
hold frogs and salamanders and streams allow
pbrook trout to thrive. Mendon also hosts the largest
palsam fir in the state of Vermont.
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Tropical Storm Irene

On August 29, 2011, the
remnants of Hurricane Irene
deposited eleven inches of rain on
Mendon In less than twelve hours.
Mendon Brook raged over Its banks
and washed out more than a mile of
Wheelerville Road and a quarter mile
of U.S. Route 4, just uphill from where
you stand. With additional highway
washouts to the north and east, a large section of Mendon became an “island”,
with no road access to the outside world. The Alpine sewage pipeline and power
and communication lines to the “island” were also cut. Vermont National Guard
helicopters flew water, food and supplies to residents who were trapped.

Mendon town officials and office staff leapt into action. With the unrelenting
help of Mendon’s own Casella Construction Company, work began immediately
on restoring U.S. Route 4. Local residents opened an alternative access route

through the woods on an abandoned logging road, soon dubbed the "Woodchip
Parkway.” Over two weeks more than

15,000 people walked a half-mile from
S b R the end of Journey’s End Road to the
B 1| R end of Helvi Hill Road to get to and from
B . N \/0rk, school and doctor’'s appointments.
U. S. Route 4 was rebuilt and
repaved in just 19 days, Wheelerville
Lol R S Road was reopened shortly thereafter
BRECN e S and the sewage pipeline, power and
Wheservile Road - August 28, 2011 I . phone services were restored as well.
The total cost of damage of Tropical Storm Irene in Mendon alone was

over $2,200,000.

US Route 4 - August 28, 2011

This display funded by the Town of Mendon and the Mendon Historical Society
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